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James Buchanan Duke was born in 1856, the youngest son of a North Carolina farmer. During the Civil 

War, James’ father, Washington, was drafted into military service. When he returned to the family farm,  

his limited assets included two blind mules, a storehouse of dried tobacco and 50 cents. Together, 

Washington and his sons, Ben and James, built a giant tobacco business. The family eventually shifted 

investments to textiles and hydroelectric power — a move that led to the founding of Duke Power 

Company in 1905. On December 11, 1924, James Duke established The Duke Endowment through an 

Indenture of Trust with an initial gift of $40 million. He died just 10 months later, leaving an additional 

$67 million to the Endowment. Today, the Duke Homestead, near Durham, is a North Carolina Historic 

Site, where guides take visitors back in time. The farmhouse that Washington Duke built in 1852 still 

stands, along with a two-story building that he used for manufacturing.

Duke Homestead property today
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c h a i r m a n    p r e s i d e n t

letter from the 

&

When James B. Duke established The Duke Endowment in 1924, he focused his philanthropy on children, health 

care, higher education and rural churches in North Carolina and South Carolina. One of the great industrialists of the 

20th century, his legacy would change lives, build institutions and foster innovation in the two states.

His life began on a North Carolina farm and the rural Carolinas remained important to him. We chose to focus  

our 2007 annual report on the Endowment’s work in rural communities because they continue to be a vital part  

of our mission. 

On the following pages, you’ll read about efforts that are making a difference — efforts that are rooted in Mr. Duke’s 

belief in the importance of a strong Carolinas. For 84 years, the Endowment has had the privilege of connecting with 

teachers and doctors, nurses and pastors, family advocates and caregivers through the organizations that we fund.

You’ll hear from a therapist who works with vulnerable children in eastern North Carolina, and a student from a small 

town who attends Furman University. You’ll visit a school-based health center in Johnsonville, S.C., and affordable 

apartments for seniors in the mountains.

We work to keep the Endowment’s ties to rural communities strong. For seven years, we have co-sponsored a 

conference that addresses issues unique to small and rural health care executives. One of our past initiatives, Program 

for the Rural Carolinas, encouraged community-based economic renewal. In 2007, staff members logged some 161,000 

miles connecting with grantees across the two states.

Our larger commitments may make the headlines: In 2007, for example, we announced a $12 million, multi-year grant 

to improve the health of United Methodist clergy in rural North Carolina. We committed $15 million to a new Duke 

University program that makes civic engagement an integral part of an undergraduate’s education.
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We were also pleased to award grants to start food pantries, to help parents become better caregivers and to improve 

the quality of life for people with memory impairment.

This report highlights other milestones, as well.

As stewards of Mr. Duke’s legacy, we continued to focus on the effectiveness of our grants and initiatives. In 2007, we 

standardized our grant applications and procedures, which will improve the way we track project results, expanding the 

impact of beneficiaries’ work and our funding. The Endowment hosted training sessions for more than 500 grantees in 

communities across the Carolinas. 

Also in 2007, the Endowment retained DUMAC, LLC, to manage its investment assets. DUMAC is an investment 

management company that operates as a separate, nonprofit entity and manages the investment assets of Duke 

University. As the investment world becomes more complicated, DUMAC offers a larger staff with diverse expertise.

From the mountains to the coast, our work continues. Mr. Duke’s extraordinary legacy endures today — in every life 

touched, every institution advanced, every innovation discovered.

russell m. robinson ii eugene w. cochrane jr.

eugene w. cochrane jr.—presidentrussell m. robinson ii—chairman
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In 1924 with a gift of $40 million. 

A bequest of $67 million was added to the  

Trust after Mr. Duke’s death in 1925.

17th $185.8 
MILLIONLARGEST IN THE U.S.

foundation by asset size new grants

founder established

Highlights

James Buchanan Duke
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We seek to fulfill the legacy of James Buchanan Duke  

by enriching lives and communities in the Carolinas  

through health care, higher education,  

rural churches and children’s services.

We focus our expertise and resources  

on improving lives, strengthening  

organizations and advancing innovation  

to balance direct aid in the present  

with strategic investment  

for the future. 

$3.3387
BILLION

net assets 

purpose strategy

5

new projects
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A new program at Duke University makes civic engagement an integral part of the undergraduate experience. DukeEngage  
provides full funding, along with faculty and administrative support, to all undergraduates who want to stretch beyond the  
classroom by tackling societal issues at home and abroad. In the summer of 2007, nearly 90 Duke students participated in a  
pilot program, including Sunny Kantha (back right), who served in Muhuru Bay, Kenya, doing microfinance research. A junior 
majoring in economics and public policy studies, Sunny says the DukeEngage opportunity was life-changing. “I came back a  
different person.” The Duke Endowment and the Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation provided $15 million each for initial funding. 

Eissabeth Kaye Dizon fell in love with Davidson College as a high school student in Hickory, North Carolina, but she worried  
about a financial strain on her family. Thanks to The Davidson Trust, however, she now attends her dream school. The new  
financial aid initiative frees students from the burden of mandatory loans, which school officials hope will help students who  
might never have imagined a Davidson education. The Duke Endowment pledged $15 million to the effort. Eissabeth, Class  
of 2011, says her first year at Davidson was as challenging as she hoped it would be. “I learned to explore and discover new  
things about myself,” she says. “I always felt encouraged to branch out.”

civic engagement

new financial aid
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Through its Child Care work, the Endowment invests in quality organizations, proven programs and innovative approaches  
that help vulnerable children lead successful lives. In 2007, Endowment staff participated in an alliance with other funders  
working together to promote evidence-based, nationally recognized programs to strengthen families in North Carolina. Staffed  
by Prevent Child Abuse North Carolina, the group includes the Kate B. Reynolds Charitable Trust, the North Carolina Partnership 
for Children, the Children’s Trust Fund and the state divisions of public health, mental health and social services. The alliance 
recently helped launch North Carolina’s Nurse-Family Partnership, a nurse home-visiting program that improves the health and  
self-sufficiency of low-income, first-time parents and their children.

From 2001 to 2007, the Endowment invested more than $18 million to address shortages in the Carolinas’ nursing workforce.  
With universities, colleges and hospitals as partners, the Nursing Workforce Initiative helped increase enrollment in nursing 
programs, add faculty positions and improve options for clinical training. In South Carolina, for instance, Allendale County  
Hospital now works with University of South Carolina Salkehatchie to offer a Bachelor of Science degree in Nursing for  
local students through the University of South Carolina Columbia. “If it were not for this program, my opportunities to  
be a nurse would be very limited,” says Dalyn Ford, a student who lives in rural Sycamore. Ford looks forward to taking  
care of the people in her community.

alliance for children

nursing workforce initiative

Left to right: Nursing students Cortney Gillan and Dalyn Ford.
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Before the Program for the Rural Carolinas came to a close in 2007, grantees reported that more than 1,800 people graduated  
from job training, 230 businesses were started and 455 new leaders learned about economic development. The community-based 
program was funded by the Endowment and co-managed by MDC in Chapel Hill, N.C. Another success: Low-income people 
received millions of dollars in unexpected refunds through volunteer tax-preparation sites that introduced them to the federal 
Earned Income Tax Credit. Over five years, many lives were changed. One woman, for example, graduated from a Certified Nursing 
Assistant program sponsored by a rural United Methodist Church, found a job, moved into her own home and used her tax refund  
to buy a dependable car. “I’m more self-sufficient,” she says. “I can do things on my own.”

The Rev. Charles Cook has seen the statistics. Health problems among clergy — including obesity, high blood pressure and 
depression — may be reaching crisis levels. “Contrary to what people might expect, a pastorate can be a highly stressful job,” says 
Cook, district superintendent of the United Methodist Church Goldsboro District. “If you have a congregation with 500 people, 
there are 500 different expectations of what the pastor is supposed to be.” In 2007, the Endowment joined Duke University’s  
Divinity School and North Carolina’s two Methodist conferences to begin a seven-year, $12 million commitment to assess and 
improve the health of United Methodist clergy in rural North Carolina. Cook, an avid cyclist, believes that healthy pastors make 
healthy churches. He hopes the new program will bring healing and wholeness to where it’s needed.

program for the rural carolinas

improving clergy health
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The Endowment’s Fellowship Program, which began in 2005, exposes emerging leaders to the philanthropic landscape. The two 
current Fellows, Margaret Andrews and Elizabeth Ireland, visited campuses across the Carolinas in the fall, explaining the two-year 
program to interested students. Leah Hambright, a University of South Carolina graduate with a Master’s in Social Work, was chosen 
from a record number of applicants to start work as the next Fellow in August 2008.

At the Endowment, Fellows have a unique opportunity to participate in hands-on grantmaking, site visits and individual capstone 
projects. Andrews implemented an education and vaccination program to prevent cervical cancer in teenage girls. Ireland, who 
joined the Fellowship program in 2007, started a project to improve Latino health in eastern North Carolina. 

As the nonprofit sector looks at ways to engage a new generation of leaders, The Duke Endowment joined two other North  
Carolina foundations to produce information about their fellowship programs. The new publication — Cultivating Emerging 
Philanthropic Leaders: How to Establish a Fellowship Program — is available on the Endowment’s Web site. Created for the  
North Carolina Network of Grantmakers through a partnership with the Z. Smith Reynolds Foundation, the Kate B. Reynolds 
Charitable Trust and the Endowment, the guide is intended for foundations who want to learn about existing fellowship programs 
and explore whether to launch a program of their own. 

fellowship program

cultivating emerging leaders

Margaret Andrews, left, and Elizabeth Ireland, far right, talk to Cassandra Harding, a parish nurse in Charlotte.  
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On July 1, 2007, the Endowment retained DUMAC, LLC, to manage its investment assets. DUMAC is an investment  
management company that operates as an independent, nonprofit entity, managing the investment assets of Duke University.  
During 2007, the Endowment’s investment portfolio benefited from increases in value of global equity, hedged securities, private 
capital and real assets, producing a total return of 17.1 percent.  For the 10-year period ending December 31, 2007, the  
Endowment’s portfolio achieved an average return of 11.0 percent per annum net of fees, outperforming its policy benchmark  
by 3.9 percent.  

By standardizing grant applications and procedures in 2007, the Endowment continued to sharpen its funding strategies and  
improve the way it tracks project results. New forms and guidelines can now be downloaded from the Web site. The Endowment’s 
mission remains the same, but the new approach is expected to lead to more successful grant applications and even stronger  
programs and results. Looking forward, the goal is to make it possible for grantees to submit grants online.

investment overview

grant applications and procedures
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Lori Hawkins, North Carolina Child Treatment Program 
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Training Skilled Therapists

 When hurting children come to Lori Hawkins, she 
now feels more confident that she can help.

 A mental health clinician in New Bern, Hawkins 
serves families in rural northeast North Carolina. In 
2007, she joined the North Carolina Child Treatment 
Program, a pilot effort that trained 70 clinicians in 
ways to help children who have been sexually abused 
and traumatized.

 The Kate B. Reynolds Charitable Trust, the North 
Carolina Division of Mental Health, the Governor’s 
Crime Commission and a grant from The Duke 
Endowment provided funding. Partners included the 
University of North Carolina School of Medicine, the 
Center for Child and Family Health and the National 
Center for Child Traumatic Stress.

 The clinicians were trained in trauma-focused 
cognitive behavioral therapy, an evidence-based 
treatment that helps children talk about what 
happened and overcome related difficulties, such as 
post-traumatic stress syndrome. It also includes sessions 
with family members, guiding them as they support 
their children.

“ Evidence-based” means that the treatment has proven 
effective based on time-tested scientific research.

 The North Carolina Child Treatment program focused 
on underserved northeast North Carolina.  

It included ongoing help online and over the phone, 
as participants took on complicated cases.

“ The idea is for children to have access to quality care 
that they otherwise might not get,” says Lisa Amaya-
Jackson, associate director of the National Center for 
Child Traumatic Stress and co-director of training and 
research at the Center for Child and Family Health. 
“This gives dedicated clinicians tools in their tool kit.”

 In New Bern, Hawkins has already seen positive 
results. Before, she felt she was addressing bits and 
pieces of a child’s trauma, not the whole problem. 
“This is a comprehensive approach — and it’s 
highly successful,” she says. “You feel so much more 
competent when you have the skills to help someone.”

 A multi-year grant from The Duke Endowment is 
supporting a similar training effort in South Carolina. 
This collaboration, called Project BEST, involves 
children’s advocacy centers, state officials and 
clinicians.

“ Every child deserves appropriate treatment,” says  
Ben Saunders with the National Crime Victims 
Research and Treatment Center at the Medical 
University of South Carolina in Charleston. “At  
the end of the day, we’ll have a cadre of therapists  
who have been through this training and have 
emerged well-equipped to help kids.”

child care
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Gaye Douglas with a Johnsonville High School student
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Keeping Children Healthy

 Roads to Johnsonville, South Carolina, pass white 
frame churches, cotton fields and houses with sandy  
front yards.

 Gaye Douglas has lived in the region all her life.  
She loves the small town’s serenity and the un-
crowded feel of a rural area.

 But in recent years, as a nurse for Florence County 
School District Five, she watched her neighbors 
struggle with health care costs and access. Without 
enough providers in the area, some parents were 
driving out of town to see a doctor or treating a sick 
child themselves. If they had work or transportation 
problems, they often relied on after-hours emergency 
room visits, even for non-urgent needs. Preventive 
care became a difficult challenge.

 The situation worsened after two large industries cut 
hundreds of jobs and many Johnsonville families lost 
insurance coverage.

 Knowing that healthy children learn better, Douglas 
helped launch an effort to create a school-based 
health center in the town. After years of planning, 
workers began construction in the summer of 2007. 
A multi-year grant from The Duke Endowment, in 
collaboration with the McLeod Regional Medical 
Center and other community partners, helped 
establish the program.

  Now open at Johnsonville High School, the Campus 
Health Center serves 1,600 elementary, middle  
and high school students, along with teachers and  
their families.

 Douglas believes the center will reduce student 
absences and help to prevent parents from missing 
work. By helping teachers, she hopes it will cut the 
need for substitutes and save the school district money.

 In the first ten months, the center saw 844 patients.

 Douglas, a family nurse practitioner, and her co-
worker, Sharon Haselden, a registered nurse, treat 
respiratory infections, sore throats, ear infections and 
other common health problems. They give allergy 
shots and flu shots.

 Among their goals: They want students to have a 
documented medical home, either with their current 
provider or with the campus center, and they want  
more students enrolled at the health center to have  
physical exams.

 Local health officials expect the center will become 
a model for other rural communities, providing an 
important link in the circle of care.

health care
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Sally Morris (front center) and other Habitat volunteers
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Supporting Top Scholars

 It’s hard to catch Sally Morris with downtime on  
her hands.

 A Furman University sophomore, she volunteers for 
Habitat for Humanity, writes stories and shoots photos 
for a campus publication, works in the admissions 
office and plays an active role in a Catholic campus 
ministry. And she keeps up a 4.0 grade point average.

“ I set high standards for myself,” she says. “I hold myself 
to a strong work ethic.”

 Sally, 19, is among 55 students attending Furman on  
a James B. Duke Scholarship. Each year, the full-
tuition award goes to high achievers from the 
Carolinas and beyond.

“ These students are the cream of the crop,” says Benny 
Walker, Furman’s vice president for enrollment. 
“They’re not only outstanding performers in the 
classroom, but leaders on campus.”

 The scholarships are part of The Duke Endowment’s 
annual commitment to Furman, which has allowed 
the school to build landmark facilities, recruit talented 
faculty, encourage innovation — and attract top  
student scholars.

 The Endowment’s founder, James B. Duke, saw 
education as a way to cultivate potential and improve 

communities. He believed it should be made available 
to the most qualified students.

“ When we talk about the James B. Duke Scholarship, 
we often use the word ‘transforming,’ ” Walker says.  
“It opens the rich opportunities that you find at 
Furman for students who otherwise might miss out.”

 Sally grew up in the town of Chester, S.C., in rural 
Chester County. In high school, she competed on 
academic teams and worked as yearbook editor. 
She placed first in an extemporaneous speaking 
competition and won numerous leadership awards.  
She volunteered in the public library, tutored 
elementary students and worked at the local drug store.

 When it came time to select a college, Sally knew  
she wanted to be challenged academically, but she also 
hoped to find a close-knit campus community, where 
people worked together and cared for each other.

 The scholarship made it possible for her to attend 
Furman, where Sally says she has found small-town 
friendliness with big-time opportunities — “a diverse 
campus with diverse people, who can teach me about 
myself, the world, and how to make the most of  
my life.” 

higher education
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Naomi Cole (seated left) and friends
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Providing Housing for Seniors

 Naomi Cole first read about the Laurels of Junaluska  
in her local newspaper. Built on the hillside of a former 
family farm, the new apartment complex promised 
much-needed affordable living for seniors and retired 
United Methodist clergy in rural western North 
Carolina.

 A long-time resident of the N.C. mountains, Cole 
had been living in a nearby community. With health 
issues from childhood polio, she needed a place to live 
independently that was accessible and secure.

 The Laurels of Junaluska opened in Waynesville in 
November 2007 with 100 apartments. The project’s 
unique funding included federal and state tax credits, 
a HUD grant and a grant from The Duke Endowment 
to the Waynesville District of the Western North 
Carolina Conference of the United Methodist 
Church. Crosland, the Charlotte-based firm in charge 
of design and development, won national recognition 
for its work.

 The complex is an affiliate of Givens Estates, a United 
Methodist retirement community in Asheville. 
Targeting the region’s growing senior population, it’s 
open to men and women who are 55 and older and 
have limited incomes.

 Community officials say the need was great. In a 2000 
census, 8.5 percent of N.C. seniors were living under 

50 percent of the area median income. In Haywood 
County, the number reached nearly 21 percent. 

 Today, Laurels’ residents enjoy the facility’s library  
and exercise studio. They visit at the stone fireplace 
that warms the lobby. Outside, they can garden at  
raised beds. 

“We hope they can grow old here, where they can live 
independently and safely,” says service coordinator 
Nancy Burleson.

 Mark Bailey, director of development at Givens 
Estates, agrees. “Many feel helpless and alone, which 
can lead to increased dysfunction and early onset of 
diseases. Communities like Laurels of Junaluska can 
easily create an environment where we can extend 
the hand of Christ to people who are struggling, often 
through no fault of their own.”

 Cole moved to the Laurels two months after it opened. 
She appreciates the washer and dryer, which are 
included in every apartment. She likes the community 
room, where she plays the piano for neighbors. But she 
especially loves the view from her windows of Lake 
Junaluska and the Great Smoky Mountains.

“ My life has been enriched just knowing I can get up 
every morning and see this,” she says. “I can’t say 
enough about my new home.”

rural church



It will be seen that I have endeavored  
to make provision in some measure  

for the needs of mankind  
along physical, mental  

and spiritual lines 

 James Buchanan Duke 
Indenture of Trust

“…  

…”
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Ben and James Duke in foreground
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2007 Grants Summary

26% Improving Lives  $  47,199,515 

58% Strengthening Organizations  $  108,353,191

16% Advancing Innovation  $  30,281,227
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46 grant guidelines  

 and application  
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The Duke Endowment’s grantmaking reflects its commitment to help people  

by nurturing children, promoting health, educating minds and enriching spirits.  

Three broad categories define how the Endowment applies its resources to enrich 

lives and communities in the Carolinas. 

Improving Lives through proven programs and strategies

Strengthening Organizations and building effective systems

Advancing Innovation by encouraging, discovering and testing promising  
approaches to widespread problems

11% Child Care   $ 21,313,478 

24% Health Care  $ 45,544,405 

40% Higher Education   $ 73,177,500

16% Rural Church  $ 29,211,350

9% Cross Program / $ 16,587,200
 Special Opportunity  

 Total grants in 2007  $ 185,833,933 

In 2007, The Duke Endowment committed $185,833,933 
to 387 new projects. The following pages report on these 
new grants, which may include multiple-year commitments. 
Amounts may differ from the Financial Statements, which 
report only the first year of multi-year grants.
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The Duke Endowment works through accredited organizations and other 

select nonprofit groups to help children who are without benefit of family 

support or are at risk of losing such support reach developmental milestones 

and prepare for successful transitions to adulthood.

The following pages report on  

new grants in 2007, which may 

include multiple-year commitments. 

Amounts may differ from the 

Financial Statements, which report 

only the first year of multi-year grants.

new commitments

33% Improving Lives  $  7,034,128

41% Strengthening Organizations  $  8,642,744

26% Advancing Innovation  $  5,636,606

 Total Child Care grants
 in 2007 $ 21,313,478
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improving lives 

North Carolina

Charlotte Alexander Youth Network

$522,000 To implement multidimensional treatment foster 
care and intensive in-home services.

 The Family Center

$653,500 To support a demonstration model to help teen 
mothers aging out of foster care.

Goldsboro Wayne Action Group for  
 Economic Solvency

$299,500 To expand Healthy Families, an in-home 
visitation program for at-risk families in  
Wayne County.

Raleigh Big Brothers Big Sisters of the Triangle

$332,370 To hire new staff members.

South Carolina

Anderson Foothills Alliance

$49,000 To hire an administrative assistant to support  
the Parents Anonymous support group program.

Charleston The Dee Norton Lowcountry  
 Children’s Center

$2,346,590 To implement trauma-focused, cognitive 
behavioral therapy across four sites in South 
Carolina.

Columbia South Carolina Department  
of Social Services

$125,250 For training in Stewards of Children, a child 
sexual abuse prevention training program.

Greenville Big Brothers Big Sisters of The Upstate

$95,000 To hire a program manager.

Greenwood Greenwood Community Children’s Center

$80,000 To implement Healthy Steps, an in-home 
visitation program.

North Charleston Carolina Youth Development Center Inc.

$9,250 To expand the Freedom Schools program in 
Charleston County.

Summerville Children in Crisis in Dorchester County

$143,900 To implement Parent-Child Interaction Therapy.

Others

Decatur, Ga. Big Brothers Big Sisters of America

$877,768 To replicate outcome measurement tools and to 
implement the Agency Information Management 
System in all Carolina affiliates.

Boston, Mass. Citizen Schools

$1,500,000 To build a network of Citizen Schools programs 
in North Carolina and South Carolina.

strengthening organizations 

North Carolina

Albemarle Stanly Regional Medical Center

$84,000 To hire a forensic interviewer and a nurse  
practitioner for the Butterfly House Child 
Advocacy Center.

Andrews H.A.V.E.N.

$132,200 To hire a multidisciplinary team  
and evaluation coordinator.

Asheville CARING for Children 

$50,000  For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation. 

 Eliada Homes and Services for  
 Children and Families 

$50,000 For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation. 

Banner Elk Grandfather Home for Children 

$50,000 For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation.

Barium Springs Barium Springs Home for Children

$50,000  For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation.

$200,000  To modernize Barium’s Wagner Family and  
Child Development Center and provide outreach 
training to neighboring child care centers.

Black Mountain Presbyterian Home for Children 

$50,000  For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation.
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Charlotte  Alexander Youth Network 

$50,000  For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation.

 Florence Crittenton Services  

$50,000  For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation. 

$255,000 To hire a clinical supervisor  
and increase professional development 
opportunities for staff. 

 Foundation For The Carolinas 

$50,000  To create a collaborative unified vision  
for service among children’s agencies in  
the Charlotte, N.C., area.

 The Duke Endowment-Child Care

$10,000  To support a peer group meeting of children’s 
homes representatives to share best practices. 

$12,000  To modify the National Children’s Alliance’s 
database to track data for reporting purposes.

 United Family Services 

$185,000  To hire a child and family advocate. 

 Youth Homes

$50,000  For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation. 

$270,000  To hire a director of research  
and program development. 

Conover Sipe’s Orchard Home

$50,000 For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation.

Crossnore Crossnore School 

$50,000 For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation.

Durham Center for Child and Family Health

$230,000 To support the Child Advocacy Center  
director and hire a data manager. 

Elon Elon Homes for Children

$50,000  For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation. 

$100,000  To expand the Kennedy Charter Public School  
to include kindergarten through fifth grade.

Greensboro Children’s Home Society of North Carolina

$50,000  For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation. 

 Youth Focus 

$50,000  For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation. 

High Point Youth Unlimited 

$20,000  To become nationally accredited.

$25,000   For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation.

Jamestown Family Service of the  
 Piedmont Inc. — Greensboro 

$178,000  To hire a family victim advocate  
and a child/family therapist.

Lake Waccamaw Boys & Girls Homes of North Carolina

$17,908 To become nationally accredited. 

$50,000 For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation. 

Lexington American Children’s Home

$25,000  For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation. 

Matthews Thompson Child & Family Focus

$50,000  For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation. 

$465,000  To implement a values-based,  
residential care curriculum. 

Middlesex Free Will Baptist Children’s Home

$25,000  For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation.

Nebo Southmountain Children and  
 Family Services

$50,000 For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation. 

New Bern Big Brothers Big Sisters of  
 Southeastern North Carolina 

$231,000  To hire a development officer. 

North Wilkesboro Rainbow Center 

$50,000  For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation. 

$450,000  To launch a day treatment program serving 
Ashe, Watauga and Wilkes counties. 

Oxford Central Children’s Home of  
 North Carolina

$18,000 To conduct an assessment focusing on 
development, financial structure and service. 

$25,000 To support a land use study. 

$25,000 For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation. 
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Raleigh Children and Family Services  
 Association — North Carolina

$152,000  To add two staff support positions for the Kids 
Integrated Data System to improve technical 
support, track outcomes more effectively and 
enhance revenue.

$156,148  To provide training and scholarships to staff  
of children’s homes in North Carolina. 

$165,000  To support technical assistance and  
ongoing development for the Kids Integrated 
Data System.

 Haven House Services 

$50,000  For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation.

$172,697  To hire an accounting technician and a quality 
improvement and human resources coordinator.

 Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas

$50,000 For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation. 

$70,000 To support the quality improvement process  
and implement a new treatment program.

 Methodist Home for Children

$50,000  For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation. 

$109,285  To create a summer education program  
and improve the facilities. 

 Prevent Child Abuse North Carolina

$15,000 To implement the recommendations of  
the North Carolina Institute of Medicine  
Task Force on Child Abuse Prevention. 

$22,000 To support Healthy Families  
curriculum development. 

Rockwell Nazareth Children’s Home

$50,000  For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation.

Shelby Children’s Homes of Cleveland County

$25,000 For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation. 

$316,330 To hire a development officer. 

Thomasville Baptist Children’s Homes of  
 North Carolina

$50,000 For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation.

$340,000 To assist in the acquisition of Oak Ranch,  
a residential provider, and offset related  
operating costs. 

Webster Mountain Youth Resources

$25,000  For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation. 

Wilmington Yahweh Center

$25,000  For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation. 

Winston-Salem The Children’s Home

$50,000  For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation.

South Carolina

Anderson New Foundations Children  
 and Family Services

$50,000 For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation.

Awendaw Windwood Farm Home for Children

$11,523 For first-time reaccreditation through the Council  
on Accreditation. 

$13,465  To purchase a bus. 

$25,000  For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation.

$100,000 To implement a campus-wide wireless system  
that interfaces with all billing and clinical records.

Belton Boys Home of the South 

$25,000  For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation.  

Cayce Growing Home Southeast

$50,000  For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation.

Charleston Florence Crittenton of South Carolina

$25,000 For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation.

$195,000 To hire a development officer.

Clinton Thornwell Home and School for Children

$50,000  For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation.

Columbia Carolina Children’s Home 

$50,000 For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation.

 Epworth Children’s Home

$50,000 For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation.
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 Prevent Child Abuse South Carolina  
 and Voices for South Carolina’s Children

$50,000 To launch a South Carolina Funder’s Forum.

$63,200 To merge three organizations: Prevent Child 
Abuse South Carolina, Voices for South 
Carolina’s Children and the Children’s Trust 
Fund of South Carolina.

 South Carolina Department  
 of Social Services

$449,500 To  improve the child protective services system  
in Hampton and Greenwood counties.

 South Carolina Department  
 of Social Services

$50,000 To support the South Carolina Task Force  
on Children in Foster Care.

 South Carolina Network of Children’s  
 Advocacy Centers

$28,590 To hire an executive director.

 South Carolina Youth Advocate Program

$50,000 For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation.

$84,739 To offset costs of collecting data as part  
of a pilot outcomes study.

 Specialized Alternatives for Youth  
 of South Carolina

$50,000 For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation.

Duncan Southeastern Children’s Home

$25,000 For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation.

Greenville Generations Group Homes

$135,000 To hire a quality improvement coordinator.

 Miracle Hill Ministries

$50,000 For unrestricted operating support for maintain-
ing national accreditation.

Greenwood Bowers-Rodgers Home for  
 Abused Children

$12,330 For first-time reaccreditation through the  
Council on Accreditation.

$25,000  For unrestricted operating support for  
maintaining national accreditation.

 Connie Maxwell Children’s Home

$50,000 For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation.

Lancaster Palmetto Citizens Against Sexual Assault

$220,000 To hire a forensic interviewer, forensic medical 
examiner and program assistant.

Lexington South Carolina Association of Children’s  
 Homes and Family Services

$162,615 To provide training and scholarships to staff  
of children’s homes in North Carolina.

North Charleston Carolina Youth Development Center

$50,000 For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation.

$364,214  To hire a staff trainer, two after-care  
specialists and a leadership coach.

Seneca Collins Home and Family Ministries

$25,000  For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation.

Simpsonville Generations Group Homes

$50,000 For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation.

Tamassee Tamassee DAR School

$25,000 For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation.

York York Place

$50,000 For unrestricted operating support for 
maintaining national accreditation.

Others

Clearwater, Fla. Eckerd Youth Alternatives

$50,000 For unrestricted support for maintaining national 
accreditation for its North Carolina operations.

Tallahassee, Fla. Outward Bound

$25,000 For unrestricted support for maintaining national 
accreditation for its South Carolina operations.

$26,000  For continued assistance to implement a 
transitional program for youth in the South 
Carolina Lowcountry juvenile justice system.

Orefield, Pa. KidsPeace

$50,000 For unrestricted support for maintaining national 
accreditation for its North Carolina operations.
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advancing innovation 

North Carolina

Chapel Hill University of North Carolina at Chapel  
 Hill School of Social Work

$648,893 To evaluate the Mothers Overcoming Violence 
through Education and Empowerment program.

Charlotte Alexander Youth Network

$321,945 To implement intensive in-home services.

Durham Center for Child and Family Health

$301,500 To pilot a training and education curriculum on 
the effects of domestic violence on children.

$1,918,009 To implement a statewide program for  
the prevention of traumatic brain injury  
among infants.

Raleigh Methodist Home for Children Inc.

$130,600 To evaluate a values-based model of care for 
youth in the juvenile justice system.

 SAFEchild

$67,438  To develop and implement an evaluation plan 
for a community approach to treating children 
exposed to domestic violence.

$145,192 To implement the Mothers Overcoming Violence 
through Education and Movement program.

 South Carolina

Irmo Friends of Juvenile Justice

$250,000 To support the Community Connections 
Campaign, a transitional program for youth 
leaving the juvenile justice system.

Others

 Prevent Child Abuse and Neglect Initiative

$1,754,832 To help reduce child abuse and neglect rates in 
Durham, N.C. and the Golden Strip community 
in Greenville, S.C.

Chicago, Ill. University of Chicago Chapin Hall  
 Center for Children

$98,197 To evaluate child protection strategies in 
Durham, N.C., and the Golden Strip 
community in Greenville, S.C.

The Duke Endowment awarded $143,900 to Children in Crisis  
in Dorchester County to implement Parent-Child Interaction Therapy, 

a training model that teaches parenting skills.



 

47% Improving Lives  $  21,266,387

27% Strengthening Organizations  $  12,267,166

26% Advancing Innovation  $  12,010,852

 Total Health Care grants 
 in 2007  $ 45,544,405
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The Duke Endowment works through hospitals and health care providers  

to expand preventive and early intervention programs, improve the quality 

and safety of medical services and increase access to care.

The following pages report on  

new grants in 2007, which may 

include multiple-year commitments. 

Amounts may differ from the 

Financial Statements, which report 

only the first year of multi-year grants.

new commitments
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improving lives

North Carolina

Asheville MemoryCare

$231,500 To improve caregiver education and training  
for Alzheimer’s disease.

Burlington Alamance Regional Medical Center

$300,528 To develop PACE, a program of all-inclusive 
care for the elderly.

Cary North Carolina Hospital Foundation

$3,127,050 To establish a network of care for low-income, 
uninsured people in North Carolina. 

Chapel Hill Carol Woods Retirement Community

$996,900 To develop and implement a comprehensive 
program for seniors.

 University of North Carolina at  
 Chapel Hill School of Medicine

$649,746 To complete a study and develop 
recommendations to meet health needs of  
North Carolina adolescents and young adults.

 University of North Carolina Hospitals

$360,267 To create the North Carolina Children’s Airway 
Center for children with airway disorders.

Charlotte Carolinas HealthCare Foundation

$567,061 To establish a Center for Eating Disorders.

$592,050 To develop a disease management and health 
promotion program.

 Presbyterian Hospital Foundation

$400,000 To implement a mobile medical program  
to provide primary care services for  
underserved youth.

Flat Rock Hospice of Henderson County

$352,810 To develop and utilize an electronic database  
for palliative care patients.

Gastonia Gaston Memorial Hospital

$255,888 To expand a parish nurse program.

Greensboro Guilford County Department  
 of Public Health

$95,191 To develop a school-based vaccination project.

Greenville Pitt County Memorial Hospital

$694,857 To develop the Pediatric Healthy Weight Case 
Management Program.

$1,417,272 To develop a model of care for medically  
fragile children.

Henderson Maria Parham Hospital Association

$122,740 To expand oncology services at Maria Parham 
Medical Center.

High Point High Point Regional Health System

$269,282 To expand a child obesity program.

Jefferson Ashe Memorial Hospital

$170,136 To expand the Ashe County Healthy  
Carolinians program.

Kinston Lenoir Memorial Hospital

$250,703 To develop an outpatient diabetes  
wellness program.

Laurinburg Scotland Memorial Hospital

$98,700 To expand the mobile health program.

$213,450 To establish an oncology pharmacist position.

Mill Spring Pavillon International Treatment  
 and Renewal Center

$150,000 To develop a children’s program for substance 
abuse prevention and early intervention.

New Bern Craven Regional Medical  
 Center Foundation

$74,304 To expand a school health program in  
Pamlico County.

$107,000 To expand a school health program in  
Jones County.

Dr. Donald Schmechel, a memory disorder researcher and specialist  
at the Falls Neurology and Memory Center, evaluates a patient.  

A $187,355 grant to Caldwell Memorial Hospital in  
Lenoir helped establish the center to improve the quality  

of life for individuals and their families.  
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North Wilkesboro Wilkes Regional Medical Center

$361,417 To establish an adult day health center  
program in Wilkes County.

Pinehurst FirstHealth of the Carolinas

$534,690 To implement FirstAccess, a health  
disparities program improving access  
for underserved minorities.

Raleigh North Carolina Department of Health  
 and Human Services Office of Emergency  
 Medical Services

$2,400,000 To reduce disparities in emergency medical 
services response times in North Carolina.

  Rex Hospital

$182,400 To expand the special care nursery at  
Rex Hospital.

Roanoke Rapids Halifax Regional Medical Center

$203,852 To establish an outpatient case  
management program.

Rutherfordton Rutherford Hospital

$250,000 To develop a stabilization unit for mental  
health patients.

Sparta Alleghany Memorial Hospital

$64,299 To expand breast screening services in  
Alleghany County.

Spruce Pine Blue Ridge Regional Hospital

$79,840 To expand a school-based health center.

Statesville Iredell Memorial Hospital

$600,000 To expand a nurse practitioner clinic at Fifth 
Street Ministries.

Winston-Salem North Carolina Baptist Hospital

$150,000 To develop a pediatric palliative care program  
at Brenner Children’s Hospital.

South Carolina

Charleston MUSC Foundation

$296,098 To develop school health programs.

  Roper St. Francis Foundation

$269,000 To establish the Barrier Islands Free  
Medical Clinic.

Columbia Health Sciences South Carolina

$250,000 To establish a stroke treatment program for  
South Carolina.

$306,250 To develop a heart failure prevention program  
in rural South Carolina communities.

 Sisters of Charity Providence Hospitals

$600,000 To increase access to health care for low-income 
non-custodial fathers.

 South Carolina Department of Health  
 and Environmental Control

$41,010 To develop a school-based vaccination project.

 South Carolina Hospital Research &  
 Education Foundation

$376,170 To establish indigent access networks in  
South Carolina

$1,100,000 To support the development of coordinated 
networks of care for the low-income, uninsured 
in South Carolina.

Conway Conway Hospital

$173,000 To establish a childhood obesity program.

$500,000 To expand dental care for low-income residents.

Fairfax Allendale County Hospital

$456,200 To establish a teen pregnancy  
prevention program.

Marion Marion County Medical Center

$274,726 To support a comprehensive program  
for women’s health.

Orangeburg Methodist Oaks

$300,000 To implement PACE, a program of all-inclusive 
care for the elderly.
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strengthening organizations

North Carolina

Albemarle Stanly Regional Medical Center

$110,174 To implement a perinatal monitoring system.

Asheboro Randolph Hospital

$300,000 To construct an outpatient and cancer center.

Asheville Community Care Partners

$150,000 To expand an inpatient rehabilitation hospital.

 Mountain Area Health Education Center

$210,000 To construct an outpatient medical clinic  
for seniors.

Boone Watauga Medical Center

$500,000 To upgrade radiation oncology equipment.

Brevard Transylvania Community Hospital

$250,000 To expand and renovate the hospital.

Cary North Carolina Hospital Foundation

$228,200 To support a web-based data collection  
program for hospitals.

$242,000 To support the North Carolina Hospital 
Association Rural Health Center.

$1,011,100 To expand the Healthy Hospital Initiative, 
encouraging healthy habits for hospital employees.

Chapel Hill University of North Carolina at Chapel  
 Hill School of Medicine

$543,056 To promote improvement and innovation  
in family medicine in North Carolina and  
South Carolina.

Charlotte Carolinas HealthCare Foundation

$192,022 To establish a pediatric emergency medicine  
fellowship program at Carolinas Medical Center.

  Presbyterian Hospital Foundation

$375,000 To expand wellness and health education services 
for underserved minorities.

 The Duke Endowment-Health Care

$35,000 To support the Small and Rural  
Hospital Conference.

Cherokee Cherokee Indian Hospital Authority

$238,498 To implement a leadership program.

Durham Duke University Health System

$45,000 To support the Duke Health Sector Conference.

$100,000  To establish a fellowship in Global Child Health.

$400,000 To increase the number of geriatric nursing 
faculty.

$475,000 To expand the physician assistant and physical 
therapy education programs.

 Duplin General Hospital

$150,000 To construct a six-bed hospice facility in  
Duplin County.

 North Carolina Institute of Medicine

$110,957 To create a task force to develop a statewide 
prevention action plan. 

Greensboro Moses H. Cone Memorial Hospital

$425,000 To expand dental services to uninsured adults  
in Guilford County.

Greenville Pitt County Memorial Hospital

$99,994 To improve the quality of the nursing workforce 
in eastern North Carolina.

Lenoir Caldwell Memorial Hospital

$150,000 To improve early detection and diagnosis  
of breast cancer.

Lexington Hospice of Davidson County 

$150,000 To construct a 12-bed hospice house.

Mt. Airy Mountain Valley Hospice & Palliative Care

$150,000 To construct a 20-bed hospice house.

Murphy Murphy Medical Center

$150,000 To expand the emergency department.

North Wilkesboro Wilkes Regional Medical Center

$306,532 To establish a respiratory therapy program at 
Wilkes Community College.

Pinehurst FirstHealth of the Carolinas

$99,719 To  establish an electronic medical record  
and case management program at the  
Moore Free Care Clinic.

Raleigh North Carolina Foundation for Nursing

$277,000 To develop Hallmarks of Healthy Workplaces,  
a nurse recognition program.

Shelby Cleveland County HealthCare System

$400,000 To expand a clinical unit in the trauma center.

Siler City Chatham Hospital

$400,000 To construct a 25-bed hospital.
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Spruce Pine Blue Ridge Regional Hospital

$400,000 To expand and renovate Spruce Pine 
Community Hospital.

Sylva WestCare Health System

$150,000 To assist in purchasing a CT scanner.

Wentworth Hospice of Rockingham County

$150,000 To support the construction of an eight-bed 
hospice home.

Wilmington New Hanover Regional Medical Center

$417,146 To expand pediatric critical care services in 
southeastern North Carolina.

Winston-Salem North Carolina Baptist Hospital

$374,490 To implement a national model to improve 
patient care, increase nurse and physician 
satisfaction and decrease turnover rates.

Scotland Neck Our Community Hospital

$250,000 To construct a wellness/disease  
management center.

South Carolina

Clinton Hospice of Laurens County

$150,000 To construct a 12-bed hospice house.

Columbia Health Sciences South Carolina

$568,713 To expand the use of simulation technology in 
nursing education programs in South Carolina.

Florence McLeod Regional Medical Center  
 of the Pee Dee

$194,160 To implement a human patient simulation 
program for education and training.

$663,405 To implement an associate degree nursing 
program to serve the residents of northeastern 
South Carolina.

Greenwood Self Regional Healthcare

$525,000 To establish a cardiovascular technology degree 
program at Piedmont Technical College.

Rock Hill Carolina Community Care

$150,000 To construct a 16-bed hospice house.

advancing innovation

North Carolina
 

Belhaven Pungo District Hospital Corporation

$200,000 To establish a mental health program for children 
and young adults.

Chapel Hill University of North Carolina at  
 Chapel Hill School of Medicine

$106,496 To develop a treatment program for  
early psychosis detection and create an 
intervention program.

Charlotte The Duke Endowment-Health Care

$225,000 To evaluate Health Sciences South Carolina.

Greenville Pitt County Memorial Hospital

$3,000,000 To develop a regional health information  
network for eastern North Carolina.

Lenoir Caldwell Memorial Hospital

$187,355 To establish a Memory Care Center.

Raleigh North Carolina Foundation for  
 Advanced Health Programs

$250,000 To implement home monitoring technology  
for patients with congestive heart failure.

$1,364,665 To educate primary care physicians about  
mental health care.

 WakeMed

$625,000 To develop and establish mental health crisis 
services in Wake County.

Wilmington New Hanover Regional Medical Center

$202,038 To establish access to mental health services  
for adolescents.
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South Carolina

Charleston South Carolina Area Health  
 Education Consortium

$211,223 To explore new ways of providing specialty  
care in rural South Carolina communities.

Columbia Palmetto Health Alliance

$500,000 To demonstrate a new training model for 
Bachelor of Science in Nursing students.

 South Carolina Department of Health  
 and Environmental Control

$650,000 To implement an Emergency Medical Services 
data system in South Carolina.

 South Carolina Department of Mental  
 Health — Assessment & Resource Center

$3,739,075 To provide all hospital emergency departments 
with access to psychiatric consultation through 
video communication.

Seneca Oconee Memorial Hospital

$750,000 To establish a regionalized health information 
network in Oconee County.

Aimed at accelerating EMS response times, the Endowment awarded 
$650,000 to the South Carolina Department of Health 

 and Environmental Control to implement an Emergency Medical 
Services data system in the state. In North Carolina, a similar grant  

of $2.4 million was awarded to the Department of Health and Human 
Services Office of Emergency Medical Services.



 

 1% Improving Lives  $  777,500

99% Strengthening Organizations  $  72,400,000

 Total Higher Education grants  
 in 2007  $ 73,177,500
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The Duke Endowment works through select colleges and universities to 

advance the pursuit of educational excellence, develop initiatives and 

programs to benefit local communities, and promote collaboration and 

innovation among faculty and students.

The following pages report on  

new grants in 2007, which may 

include multiple-year commitments. 

Amounts may differ from the 

Financial Statements, which report 

only the first year of multi-year grants.

new commitments
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improving lives 

North Carolina

Durham Duke University

$777,500 To support the Duke-Durham Neighborhood 
Partnership, a program advancing Durham  
community projects.

 strengthening organizations

North Carolina

Charlotte Johnson C. Smith University

$1,600,000 To provide unrestricted operating support.

Davidson Davidson College

$1,400,000 To provide unrestricted operating support.

$15,000,000 To support The Davidson Trust, an endowment 
that will eliminate student debt in Davidson 
College financial aid packages.

Durham Duke University

$500,000 To support the Visiting Artists Initiative, which 
will bring distinguished artists to campus.

$12,500,000 To provide unrestricted operating support.

$40,000,000 To endow 32 new faculty positions in Trinity 
College, the Pratt School of Engineering and  
the Nicholas School of the Environment.

South Carolina

Greenville Furman University

$1,400,000 To provide unrestricted operating support.

As one of four schools named in James B. Duke’s Indenture,  
Johnson C. Smith University in Charlotte has received more than  
$80.5 million in support from The Duke Endowment since 1924.
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The Duke Endowment works in collaboration with the North Carolina  

and Western North Carolina conferences of the United Methodist Church 

and Duke Divinity School, to help rural churches serve their communities.

The following pages report on  

new grants in 2007, which may 

include multiple-year commitments. 

Amounts may differ from the 

Financial Statements, which report 

only the first year of multi-year grants.

 9% Improving Lives  $ 2,590,000

49% Strengthening Organizations  $  14,441,081

42% Advancing Innovation  $  12,180,269

  Total Rural Church grants  
  in 2007  $ 29,211,350

new commitments
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Albemarle Albemarle District, Western  
 North Carolina Conference,  
 United Methodist Church

$105,000 To support a Latino/Hispanic ministry.

Albertson Woodland United Methodist Church

$21,500 To provide an arts curriculum enrichment 
program for the preschool.

$35,000 To refurbish a building for Boy Scout groups.

Asheville Asheville District, Western North Carolina  
 Conference, United Methodist Church

$102,000 To provide scholarships for rural United 
Methodist ministers to attend programs on 
healing, re-orientating and problem solving.

 Reeves Chapel United Methodist Church

$83,850 To renovate a fellowship hall.

Aydlett Sharon United Methodist Church

$12,000 To enlarge a computer lab facility.

Bailey La Estrella Resplandeciente  
 (Bethlehem United Methodist Church)

$60,000 To establish a Latino/Hispanic ministry.

Bostic Salem United Methodist Church

$81,000 To engage youth in helping low-income families 
with housing repairs.

improving lives

North Carolina

Advance Bethlehem United Methodist Church

$70,000 To build affordable housing.

Charlotte Western North Carolina Conference,  
 United Methodist Church

$2,250,000 To expand the Wesley Community Development 
Corporation, which builds energy-efficient 
affordable housing.

Hayesville Hinton Rural Life Center

$100,000 To expand a rural affordable housing program.

Lake Junaluska Waynesville District, Western  
 North Carolina Conference,  
 United Methodist Church

$50,000 To support persons affected by flooding  
and landslides due to hurricanes in 2004.

Lenoir Cedar Valley United Methodist  
 Church of Harper’s Charge

$30,000 To provide affordable housing for  
low-income families who have attended  
financial literacy classes.

North Wilkesboro North Wilkesboro District,  
 Western North Carolina Conference,  
 United Methodist Church

$90,000 To build three affordable, energy-efficient  
homes for single parents and their children.

strengthening organizations

North Carolina

Advance Bethlehem United Methodist Church

$30,000 To provide transportation for youth and  
child care programs.

$40,000 To update a children’s ministry.

$150,000 To build a youth center.

Nearly 2,000 people each month receive food and clothing  
through Martha’s Place at Solid Rock United Methodist Church  

in Harnett County. The Endowment awarded $85,000 to establish  
the outreach program. 
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Clayton Christ United Methodist Church

$50,000 To build a gym with classrooms.

Clemmons Arcadia United Methodist Church

$105,000 To establish an after-school program.

Climax Bethlehem United Methodist Church

$150,000 To build new classrooms.

Columbus Columbus United Methodist Church

$50,000 To renovate and expand the sanctuary.

Concord Cold Springs United Methodist Church

$35,000 To establish a preschool education program.

Conway Pleasant Grove United Methodist Church

$150,000 To build a new fellowship hall.

Cullowhee Cullowhee United Methodist Church

$150,000 To build a multi-purpose facility.

Currituck Pilmoor Memorial United  
 Methodist Church

$30,000 To establish an after-school care program.

Durham Duke University Divinity School

$100,000 To support the Director of Field Education and to 
provide practical experience for Divinity students 
in rural settings.

$200,000 To support continuing education events.

$984,000 To provide scholarships for the 2007 Summer 
Assistant Pastors program.

$1,247,000 To provide scholarships to the 2008 Student  
Pastors and Assistant Pastors programs.

 Durham District, North Carolina  
 Conference, United Methodist Church

$180,000 To develop a Latino/Hispanic ministry.

Erwin Parker’s Grove United Methodist Church

$180,000 To establish an after-school program.

Fayetteville Fayetteville District, North Carolina   
 Conference, United Methodist Church

$150,000 To provide the District with a parish  
nurse program.

 Salem United Methodist Church

$40,000 To provide transportation for an  
after-school program.

$70,000 To upgrade an after-school program.

Bunn Bunn United Methodist Church

$60,000 To build an outdoor learning center.

Canton Plains United Methodist Church 

$93,000  To provide daily meals to low-income residents  
of eastern Haywood County.

Charlotte Charlotte District,  
 Western North Carolina Conference,  
 United Methodist Church

$25,000 To support a Latino/Hispanic ministry.

 The Duke Endowment-Rural Church

$200,000  To assist rural churches with constructing 
environmentally friendly churches and buildings.

$250,000 To evaluate the Thriving Rural  
Communities program.

 Western North Carolina Conference,  
 United Methodist Church

$7,750 To develop ministries with economically 
disadvantaged and underserved persons  
in rural communities.

$15,000 To make the Efird Bible Studies  
program available to eligible rural  
United Methodist churches.

$45,000 To provide information technology  
upgrades for REACH, a program to assist  
rural United Methodist churches with  
emergency preparedness.

$90,000 To provide consultation to Conference churches.

$90,000 To support Vision 20:20, a program that 
strengthens rural churches through outreach  
and Christian education.

$100,000 To assist rural United Methodist churches with 
accessibility projects.

$100,000 To provide leadership training to clergy and laity 
through the Town and Country Committee of 
the Western North Carolina Conference.

$120,000 To establish the position of Christian Educator 
for African American churches.

$150,000 To strengthen ethnic minority rural United 
Methodist churches in the Conference.

$1,256,708 To provide pensions to retired ministers  
and widows and dependent children of  
deceased ministers.

Cherryville Bethlehem United Methodist Church

$100,000 To help build a fellowship hall and classrooms.
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$115,000 To upgrade preschool and child care programs.

Forest City Providence United Methodist Church

$150,000 To renovate the sanctuary.

Franklin Hickory Knoll United Methodist Church

$150,000 To build a fellowship hall.

 Patton United Methodist Church

$75,000 To renovate a fellowship hall.

Fremont Fremont United Methodist Church

$8,750 To assist in emergency recovery due to flooding.

Goldsboro Pine Forest United Methodist Church

$63,500 To provide accessibility and renovate an 
education building.

Goldston Goldston United Methodist Church

$26,000 To outfit two trailers for disaster response.

$65,000 To establish a Latino/Hispanic ministry.

Grandy Currituck United Methodist Charge

$65,000 To expand the curriculum at a day care center  
to include Spanish.

$70,000 To build playgrounds for Mt. Zion and  
Hebron United Methodist Churches  
and their communities.

Greensboro Center United Methodist Church

$39,000 To provide transportation for an  
after-school program.

 Gethsemane United Methodist Church

$4,000 To establish an older adult ministry.

$38,000 To enhance an after-school ministry with a  
new playground and create a walking trail.

Hamptonville Asbury-Longtown Charge

$5,000 To install a wheelchair lift for a church bus.

 Hanes Grove United Methodist Church

$150,000 To build a fellowship hall.

Hayesville Hayesville First United Methodist Church

$63,000 To provide extended family support services 
through the Far West Families First program.

 Hinton Rural Life Center

$77,700 To help rural congregations develop  
effective ministries through training  
and consultation work.

Hertford Hertford United Methodist Church

$25,500 To build accessible ramps and restrooms. 

Hildebran Hildebran United Methodist Church

$23,750 To provide transportation for youth programs.

Hillsborough Union Grove United Methodist Church

$173,000 To establish a Christian Education program.

Huntersville Assurance United Methodist Church

$100,000 To help build an education building.

Hurdle Mills Mount Zion United Methodist Church

$150,000 To build a fellowship hall and classroom building.

Indian Trail Mill Grove United Methodist Church

$150,000 To build a multi-purpose building.

 Union Grove United Methodist Church

$25,000 To establish a rural life family center.

$44,000 To establish a summer reading and  
tutoring program.

Kill Devil Hills Colington United Methodist Church

$47,060 To add classrooms.

LaGrange Bethel United Methodist Church

$143,100 To build a fellowship hall and classrooms.

Lake Junaluska Waynesville District, Western  
 North Carolina Conference,  
 United Methodist Church

$20,000 To provide summer employment and leadership 
training opportunities for college students from 
rural United Methodist churches.

Leasburg Leasburg United Methodist Church

$21,255 To upgrade a playground.

Lexington Good Hope United Methodist Church

$20,000 To build a playground.

 Reeds United Methodist Church

$30,000 To support an after-school tutoring and  
youth program. 

$150,000 To establish a food/clothing closet.

Lillington Sanford Circuit Charge

$14,500 To provide food pantries, soup kitchens  
and ministry to those in need.

$21,000 To provide after-school tutoring at three  
churches of the charge.

 Union United Methodist Church

$90,000 To establish an after-school and  
summer program.

Maxton Piney Grove United Methodist Church

$150,000 To build a new sanctuary and  
education building. 
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Pittsboro Chatham United Methodist Church

$150,000 To build a fellowship hall and classroom addition.

Raleigh North Carolina Annual Conference,  
 United Methodist Church

$100,000 For a consultant to evaluate child care programs 
in rural churches.

$100,000 To assist rural United Methodist churches with 
accessibility projects.

$100,000 To strengthen rural churches in the Conference 
through the Town and Country Committee.

$114,000 To provide consultation services for the 
development and program needs of rural United 
Methodist churches.

$150,000 To strengthen the office of ethnic minority 
churches in the North Carolina Conference.

$170,000 To implement Stop Hunger Now’s Operation 
Sharehouse Program, a Methodist-based hunger 
prevention program. 

$792,644 To provide pensions to retired ministers  
and widows and dependent children of  
deceased ministers.

 Raleigh District, North Carolina  
 Conference, United Methodist Church

$52,000 To improve effectiveness among the District’s  
16 rural churches.

Rockingham Rockingham District, North Carolina  
 Conference, United Methodist Church

$5,000 To produce a book on Lumbee  
Native Americans.

Rocky Mount Rocky Mount District, North Carolina  
 Conference, United Methodist Church

$15,000 To assist with building renovations at La Estrella 
Resplandeciente United Methodist Church.

Ronda Temple Hill United Methodist Church

$6,500 To support expanding adult Disciple Bible study, 
youth Bible study and recreation programs.

$33,200 To provide transportation for church members.

Rowland New Hope United Methodist Church

$150,000 To build a fellowship hall and classrooms.

 Pleasant Grove United Methodist Church

$150,000 To build accessible restrooms and for  
sanctuary renovations.

Rutherford College Abernethy Memorial  
 United Methodist Church

$63,500 To increase staff, provide transportation  
and increase the number of programs for  
youth and seniors.

Midland Bethel United Methodist Church

$150,000 To renovate the sanctuary.

Mills River Mills River United Methodist Church

$98,000 To provide exercise, recreation, health 
information and screenings, as well as  
lunchtime meals, to senior citizens.

Mocksville Liberty United Methodist Church

$45,002 To build ramps and an accessible restroom.

Mooresville Oak Grove United Methodist Church

$25,000 To build a community playground.

Mount Mourne Fair View United Methodist Church

$30,000 To support community youth outreach ministries.

Moyock Moyock United Methodist Church

$25,000 To support child care programs.

$50,000 To provide emergency aid to a rural  
United Methodist church. 

Nashville Sandy Cross United Methodist Church

$3,000 To provide playground equipment.

New Bern New Bern District, North Carolina  
 Conference, United Methodist Church

$54,000 To expand a Latino/Hispanic ministry program.

Norman Concord United Methodist Church

$3,300 To build an outdoor recreation facility.

North Wilkesboro Arbor Grove United Methodist Church

$55,000 To establish an after-school tutoring program.

 North Wilkesboro District,  
 Western North Carolina Conference,  
 United Methodist Church

$57,000 To support ministers attending seminars at  
the Rural Economic Development Institute.

$185,000 To support capacity building in District churches.

 Union United Methodist Church

$25,000 To build a playground.

Old Fort Old Fort United Methodist Church

$17,950 To assist in emergency relief for storm damage.

Olivia Solid Rock United Methodist Church

$85,000 To establish a food pantry.

Peachland Peachland United Methodist Church

$150,000 To build a sanctuary.

Pembroke Sandy Plains United Methodist Church

$150,000 To renovate a fellowship hall and kitchen.
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Winston-Salem Oak Forest United Methodist Church

$43,000 To complete soccer and softball fields and  
build a walking track.

$42,000 Shady Grove United Methodist Church

 To purchase a handicap-accessible bus.

Woodleaf South River United Methodist Church

$21,000 To improve a playground.

Other
 

Norwalk, Conn. Faith and Form

$2,000 To provide a subscription to Faith and Form 
magazine to rural United Methodist churches  
in North Carolina.

advancing innovation

North Carolina

Durham Duke University Divinity School

$12,180,269 To assess and improve the health of United 
Methodist clergy in North Carolina while 
educating their congregations in the practices  
of health ministries.

Salisbury Salisbury District, Western North Carolina  
 Conference, United Methodist Church

$140,000 To support a Latino/Hispanic ministry.

Seagrove Piney Ridge United Methodist Church

$65,000 To build accessible ramps and restrooms.

South Mills Trinity United Methodist Church

$11,242 To renovate the church entrance.

Stanly Hill’s Chapel United Methodist Church

$22,000 To update and add age-appropriate  
playground equipment.

Stoneville Centenary United Methodist Church

$115,350 To build a multi-purpose classroom and  
renovate existing rooms.

Stony Point Stony Point United Methodist Church

$8,500 To provide children in need with backpacks  
filled with nutritious food for the weekend.

Swan Quarter Soule United Methodist Church

$104,280 To renovate the sanctuary.

Townsville Hargrove Chapel United Methodist Church

$8,640 To establish an after-school computer and 
tutoring center.

Vale Laurel Hill United Methodist Church

$18,000 To maintain an emergency food pantry.

Walkertown Morris Chapel United Methodist Church

$150,000 To build classrooms.

Wanchese Bethany United Methodist Church

$15,300 To support the Dare Respite Care program.

Warrensville Clifton United Methodist Church

$38,750 To expand a Mobile Meals program.

$105,000 To expand the School Kids feeding program  
to include additional children.

 Warrensville United Methodist Church

$14,000 To build a playground.

Welcome Center United Methodist Church

$150,000 To build a fellowship hall.

West End West End United Methodist Church

$150,000 To build a new Community Youth Lodge.

A $30,000 grant to Reeds United Methodist Church in Lexington 
supports an after-school tutoring and youth program.



 

94% Improving Lives  $  15,531,500

 3% Strengthening Organizations  $  602,200

 3% Advancing Innovation  $  453,500

  Total Cross Program/
  Special Opportunity grants in 2007 $  16,587,200
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The Duke Endowment’s Cross Program grants tap the resources and 

expertise of two or more of the Endowment’s program areas. Special 

Opportunity grants are made to organizations to further the Endowment’s 

core program priorities.

The following pages report on  

new grants in 2007, which may 

include multiple-year commitments. 

Amounts may differ from the 

Financial Statements, which report 

only the first year of multi-year grants.

new commitments
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Cross Program grants tap the resources and expertise  
of two or more of the Endowment’s program areas.

improving lives

North Carolina

Morganton Appalachian Family Innovations

$531,500 To expand home visiting services in Burke 
County. (A collaboration between  
Child Care and Health Care)

strengthening organizations 

North Carolina

Durham Duke University Divinity School

$17,000 To support the placement of two Duke Divinity 
School field education students at the Methodist 
Home for Children. (A collaboration between 
Rural Church and Child Care)

Others

Washington, D.C. Zero to Three — National Center  
 for Infants, Toddlers, and Families

$55,000 To provide scholarships for two early childhood 
professionals, one from North Carolina and 
one from South Carolina, to participate in a 
leadership program. (A collaboration between 
Child Care and Health Care)

cross program

A $17,000 grant to Duke University Divinity School will support 
the placement of Duke Divinity School field education students, such as 

Jennifer Bates, at the Methodist Home for Children.
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special opportunity
Special Opportunity grants are made to organizations  
to further the Endowment’s core program priorities.  

South Carolina

Columbia South Carolina Association of  
 Nonprofit Organizations

$10,000 To support nonprofit organizations  
in South Carolina.

Multiple States

$142,700 To support philanthropic advocacy organizations 
and affinity groups.

advancing innovation 

North Carolina

Charlotte The Duke Endowment

$200,000 To support the community building process for 
the North Carolina Nurse-Family Partnership.

Lake Junaluska Waynesville District, Western  
 North Carolina Conference,  
 United Methodist Church

$253,500 To help establish a model child care center at 
Haywood County Community College.

improving lives

North Carolina

Durham Duke University

$15,000,000 To support DukeEngage, a program that gives 
undergraduates the opportunity to participate in a 
summer or semester-long service project.

strengthening organizations 

North Carolina

Asheville WNC Partners for Success

$60,000 To support a learning community that provides 
programming and resources for nonprofits across 
western North Carolina counties.

Charlotte Public Library of Charlotte &  
 Mecklenburg County

$7,500 To support the transfer of the Foundation  
Center’s Cooperating Collection from  
the Endowment to the Public Library of  
Charlotte & Mecklenburg County.

 The Duke Endowment

$50,000 To engage The Rensselaerville Institute  
to help standardize the Endowment’s 
grantmaking process.

Crossnore Crossnore School Inc.

$100,000 To establish the Hugh M. Chapman  
Scholarship Fund.

Durham Duke University School of Law

$100,000 To honor former Endowment Trustee  
Lanty L. Smith for the University Law School.

Raleigh N.C. Center for Nonprofits

$10,000 To support nonprofit organizations in  
North Carolina.

 The Philanthropy Journal

$50,000 To expand news coverage about the nonprofit 
sector and to develop an interactive portal for 
foundations to share information.
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The new grant submission process includes 
several steps:

STEP 1. Determine the eligibility of  
your organization.

Child Care in North Carolina and South Carolina

 Accredited, licensed residential children’s homes

 Accredited adoption placement agencies

 Accredited child advocacy centers

 Prevent Child Abuse N.C. and S.C.(and their local affiliates)

 Big Brothers Big Sisters agencies

 Public sector child welfare agencies (under certain circumstances)

Health Care in North Carolina and South Carolina

 Not-for-profit hospitals

 Academic health centers

 Area Health Education Centers

 Select health organizations in counties without an eligible hospital

 Not-for-profit providers of licensed, inpatient, long-term care

Higher Education exclusively to

 Davidson College (Davidson, N.C.)

 Duke University (Durham, N.C.)

 Furman University (Greenville, S.C.)

 Johnson C. Smith University (Charlotte, N.C.)

Rural Churches in North Carolina

 United Methodist Churches that serve North Carolina communities  
 of fewer than 1,500 people

 The North Carolina and Western North Carolina conferences  
 and districts of the United Methodist Church

 Duke University Divinity School

 Retired United Methodist pastors and their families on record with  
 the North Carolina and Western North Carolina conferences

STEP 2. Identify grant application deadlines. 

The Trustees of The Duke Endowment meet to review 
grant requests two times per year.  Applications must be 
received on or before the designated dates.

Upon receipt of your application, a program officer will 
contact your organization to coordinate a formal review 
of your request.

STEP 3. Select the application that best matches 
your project objectives.

Programs and capital projects must support one of  
three strategies.

 Improving Lives grants reflect the value we place on  
proven programs and strategies.

 Strengthening Organizations grants reflect our  
commitment to investing in building the infrastructure  
of effective enterprises and institutions. In our efforts to 
improve facilities, systems, management and operations,  
we are particularly interested in supporting opportunities  
that show great promise for long-term gains.

 Advancing Innovation grants reflect our investment in 
projects that advance innovation when high-achieving, 
successful models are lacking.

STEP 4. Complete application.

Once you’ve determined which application best suits 
your proposed project, review the corresponding guide, 
sample application and sample budget, all available 
online at www.dukeendowment.org. You’ll find important 
information for framing your application responses and 
budget proposal.

The Duke Endowment will acknowledge receipt of  
your application.

In 2007, The Duke Endowment adopted a more standardized grant application and submission process.  
Designed to clearly communicate our strategies and guidelines, this approach will  

ultimately help grantees submit more effective applications.

Please contact us if you have eligibility questions, if you’re not sure which funding strategy your project supports,  
or if you would like to discuss other details of your project. 

Grant Guidelines and Application Procedures
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Since James B. Duke’s death in 1925, the assets of The Duke Endowment have achieved significant growth.  
The corpus has increased from $107 million to $3.3 billion, a 30-fold increase. During the same time, $2.4 billion 
has been distributed in grants.

In 2007, the Endowment evaluated the potential benefits of retaining DUMAC, LLC to manage the Endowment’s 
investment assets. After careful consideration, the Board of Trustees approved a proposal to appoint DUMAC as 
investment manager, effective July 1, 2007. DUMAC is an investment management company that operates as an 
independent, nonprofit entity, managing the investment assets of Duke University.  

From December 31, 2006 to December 31, 2007, the Endowment’s investment portfolio value increased from  
$3.0 billion to $3.3 billion, and generated a total return of 17.1 percent. The investment portfolio was well 
positioned in 2007, and benefited mainly from returns generated from increases in value of global equity, hedged 
strategies, private capital and real assets allocations.

For the 10-year period ended December 31, 2007, the Endowment’s investment portfolio achieved an average 
return of 11.0 percent per annum net of fees, outperforming its policy benchmark by 3.9 percent and the  
S&P 500 Index by 5.1 percent annually. 

grants and expenses

investment returnstotal assets (in billions)

Financial Summary 

 87.2% Grants $  161,354,904

 7.5% Investment expenses $  13,926,061

 2.4% Administrative expenses $  4,363,120

 2.3% Program expenses $  4,167,463

 0.6% Provision for taxes $  1,233,117

87.2 percent of the Endowment’s total spending goes directly to 
grantmaking. This compares favorably to other foundations our size.
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The Trustees of The Duke Endowment:

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of The Duke Endowment as of December 
31, 2007, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Endowment’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America as established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis 
for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Endowment’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of The Duke Endowment as of December 31, 2007, and the results of its operations and cash flows  
for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States  
of America.

We have previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, the statement of activities of The Duke Endowment for the year ending December 31, 2006 (not 
presented herein); and in our report dated May 4, 2007, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial 
statements. In our opinion, the 2006 summarized financial information set forth in the accompanying statement 
of activities is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements from which it has 
been derived.

As explained in Notes 2 and 5, the financial statements include certain private equity investments valued 
at $426,100,559, and $322,101,262, or 13% and 11% of net assets, as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, 
respectively. The fair values of such investments have been estimated by management in the absence of readily 
determinable fair market values. Management’s estimates are based on information provided by the fund 
managers or the general partners of the private equity investments.

Charlotte, North Carolina 
May 27, 2008

Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants
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assets

 Cash and cash equivalents

 Securities transactions receivable

 Investments, at estimated market value

 Investment in DUMAC, LLC

total assets

liabilities and net assets

Liabilities

 Grants payable

 Provision for taxes

 Provision for operating expenses

 Securities transactions payable

 Net deferred excise tax liability

 Other liabilities 

  Total liabilities 

Net assets

  Unrestricted

  Temporarily restricted

  Permanently restricted

 Total net assets

total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2007

$ 1,993,303 

 165,707,584 

 3,176,945,241 

 130,000 

 $ 3,344,776,128 

 $ 14,801,896 

 579,980 

 1,839,782 

 1,259,525 

 5,628,000 

 1,715,832 

 25,825,015 

 2,098,662 

57,124,985

3,259,727,466

3,318,951,113

$ 3,344,776,128 

2006

 $ 31,269,293 

7,866,719 

2,942,601,952

— 

 $ 2,981,737,964

 

 $ 18,274,628 

 556,578 

 1,839,782 

 8,014,531 

 6,168,000 

 1,944,933 

 36,798,452

 

  1,989,530 

87,798,872

2,855,151,110

2,944,939,512

 $ 2,981,737,964 

Statements of Financial Position 
December 31, 2007 (with comparative amounts for December 31, 2006)
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revenues, gains & losses

Dividends and interest   

Net realized gains     
 on investment transactions 

(Decrease) Increase in net unrealized  
 appreciation on assets

total revenues, gains & losses 

expenses

Administrative

Program

Investment

Change in provision for expenses

Provision for taxes

total expenses

released from restrictions  
(note 3)

grants approved

Education

Health Care

Child Care

Superannuated Preachers

Building Rural Churches

Operating Rural Churches

Administrative Grants   

Special Opportunities   

total grants approved 

Increase (Decrease) in net assets

Net assets at beginning of year

net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

temporarily
restricted

—     

 
—

  
—

— 

—  

  —

  —

  —

  —

 

 
$ (30,673,887)

—

  —

  —

  —

  —

  —

  —

  —

  —

$ (30,673,887)

 87,798,872 

 $ 57,124,985 

2007

$ 61,653,797 

 
550,851,341 

(53,448,872)

$ 559,056,266 

 $ 4,363,120 

 4,167,463 

 13,926,061 

 — 

 1,233,117 

$ 23,689,761 

 

—

$ 58,212,500 

 54,167,198 

 16,864,125 

 2,049,352 

 3,747,969 

 10,485,691 

 628,069 

 15,200,000 

 $ 161,354,904 

$ 374,011,601 

 2,944,939,512 

 $ 3,318,951,113 

2006

$ 65,193,796 

 
184,994,320  

175,707,718

$ 425,895,834 

$ 4,074,534 

3,682,412 

11,473,044 

270,131 

1,303,876 

$ 20,803,997 

  
—

$ 55,847,616 

44,677,997 

18,669,496 

2,053,991 

3,055,078 

7,744,765

— 

 4,471,503 

$ 136,520,446 

$ 268,571,391 

2,676,368,121 

$ 2,944,939,512 

permanently
restricted

 —

 
  550,851,341 

 
 (53,448,872)

$ 497,402,469 

— 

  —

  —

  —

  —

    —

 

 
$  (92,826,113)

 —

  —

  —

  —

  —

  —

  —

  —

  —

$ 404,576,356 

 2,855,151,110 

 $ 3,259,727,466 

unrestricted

 $ 61,653,797 

 
—

  
—

$ 61,653,797 

 $ 4,363,120 

 4,167,463 

 13,926,061 

— 

 1,233,117

$ 23,689,761

 
$ 123,500,000 

 $ 58,212,500 

 54,167,198 

 16,864,125 

 2,049,352 

 3,747,969 

 10,485,691 

 628,069 

 15,200,000

$ 161,354,904 

 $ 109,132 

 1,989,530 

 $ 2,098,662 

Statements of Activities 
Year ended December 31, 2007 (with summarized financial information for the year ended December 31, 2006)
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cash flows from operating activities 

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash  
 used by operating activities:

 Net realized gains on investment transactions

 Decrease (Increase) in net unrealized  
  appreciation on assets

 Increase in securities transactions receivable

 Decrease in other liabilities

 (Decrease) Increase in securities transactions payable

Net cash used by operating activities

cash flows from investing activities

 Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 

 Disbursements for purchase of investments

 Disbursements for ownership in DUMAC, LLC

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash & cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

cash and cash equivalents at end of year

supplemental cash flow information

 Cash paid during the year for taxes

non-cash investing activity

 Current year change in unrealized appreciation

 Deferred excise tax provision

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2007

 $ 374,011,601

 

(550,851,341)

  
53,448,872

(157,840,865)

(3,678,431)

(6,755,006)

(291,665,170)

12,868,881,562 

(12,606,362,382)

(130,000)

262,389,180 

(29,275,990)

31,269,293 

$ 1,993,303

$ 4,243,790

(47,820,872) 

(5,628,000)

 $ (53,448,872) 

2006

 $ 268,571,391

 

(184,994,320)

 
(175,707,718)

(4,643,552)

(3,521,816)

6,079,231 

 (94,216,784)

2,987,540,626 

(2,892,961,890)

—

94,578,736 

361,952 

 30,907,341 

$ 31,269,293 

$ 3,345,741

181,875,718 

(6,168,000)

 $ 175,707,718 

Statements of Cash Flows 
Year ended December 31, 2007 (with comparative amounts for the year ended December 31, 2006)
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note 1: summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Organization

The Duke Endowment (the Endowment) was established by James B. Duke by Indenture and Deed of Trust of Personalty, dated 
December 11, 1924, for specific charitable, educational and religious purposes. The Endowment is to have perpetual existence. 
Subsequently, additional amounts were contributed to the Endowment under Items VIII, X, and XI of the Will of James B. 
Duke and by gifts from members of Mr. Duke’s family. Additional amounts were also received from The Doris Duke Trust. 
The Endowment has been classified as a private foundation and, accordingly, is subject to federal excise taxes imposed on net 
investment income, including realized capital gains. The Endowment is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

(b) DUMAC, LLC

On July 1, 2007, the Trustees of the Endowment entered into a formal agreement with Duke Management Company, an 
organization providing investment management services for the Duke University endowment assets, whereby Duke Management 
Company would perform investment management services on behalf of the Endowment. In connection with this agreement, 
Duke Management Company was reorganized into a new legal entity, DUMAC, LLC (“DUMAC”). Pursuant to the terms of the 
arrangement, the Endowment holds equity membership in this LLC proportionate to its share of the contributed assets. As of 
December 31, 2007, this equity membership in DUMAC totaled $130,000. 

Pursuant to the terms of the arrangement, DUMAC is compensated by the Endowment for its investment management 
services at a rate proportionate to the Endowment’s share of DUMAC, LLC’s total assets in comparison to the total operating 
expenses of DUMAC, LLC, paid annually. For the six months ending December 31, 2007, the Endowment incurred investment 
management fees to DUMAC in the amount of $1,974,000.

(c) Method of Accounting

The Endowment presents its financial statements primarily on an accrual basis in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the U.S. Certain items are maintained on a cash basis, which is not materially different from the accrual 
basis of accounting. 

Costs of office furnishings and equipment are consistently charged to expense as the Endowment does not deem such amounts to 
be sufficiently material to warrant capitalization and depreciation. 

The Endowment leases certain office facilities and equipment. Such leases are accounted for as operating leases and costs are 
expensed as incurred.

Under certain limited circumstances, the Trustees, at their discretion, as determined by court order, may be required to transfer 
restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets to the extent necessary to comply with the provisions set forth in Section 4942 of 
the tax code. See Note 3.

(d) Basis of Presentation

In accordance with terms of the Indenture, which established the Endowment, realized gains and losses arising from investment 
transactions are considered part of permanently restricted net assets and are not available for distribution to beneficiaries, except 
to comply with federal tax laws as set forth in Note 3.

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 
Accordingly, the net assets of the Endowment and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

 Unrestricted Net Assets — These amounts are available for appropriation to the beneficiaries of the Endowment or for similar 
charitable purposes in accordance with terms of the Indenture.

 Temporarily Restricted Net Assets — Beginning in 2005 the Trustees authorized the identification of assets previously 
classified as permanently restricted net assets. These principal funds are available for appropriation to the beneficiaries of 
the Endowment or for similar charitable purposes in accordance with the Indenture, to meet the distribution requirements 
described in Section 4942 of the Internal Revenue Code.

 Permanently Restricted Net Assets — Net assets subject to donor imposed stipulations that they be maintained permanently 
by the Endowment. These represent original and subsequent contributions and related realized and unrealized gains which are 
to be held in perpetuity.

Notes to Financial Statements
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The Endowment is required by the Indenture to use all or part of the interest and dividends (Endowment Income) earned on 
investments held in Temporarily and Permanently Restricted net assets for purposes defined in the Indenture. More specifically, 
the Endowment is required by the Indenture to distribute to Duke University a certain amount of Endowment Income from the 
Original Corpus, Corpus Item VIII and Corpus Item XI, subject to a limited right to withhold by the Trustees of the Endowment. 
The Indenture provides for additional Trustee discretion with respect to the disbursement of Endowment Income to Endowment 
beneficiaries other than Duke University and to Duke University out of accounts other than Original Corpus, Corpus Item VIII 
and Corpus Item XI.

Dividends and interest are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets. Capital gains and losses are reported as increases or 
decreases in permanently restricted net assets in accordance with donor-imposed restrictions. Expenses and grants approved are 
recorded as decreases in unrestricted net assets.

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative financial information in total but not by net asset 
class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the 
organization’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006, from which the summarized information was derived.

(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits and certain short-term interest bearing investments held with banks for 
beneficiary and expense purposes. The Endowment maintains cash on deposit and the balance, at times, may be in excess of 
federally insured limits.

(f) Securities Transactions Receivable

Securities transactions receivable represents investment transactions that have been sold, but not settled. The Endowment 
recognizes investment transactions on a trade date basis. Amounts are recognized in the Statement of Financial Position at fair 
market value.

(g) Investments

The Endowment accounts for investments under FASB Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 124, “Accounting for 
Certain Investments Held by Not-for-Profit Organizations,” through which the Endowment has elected to record investments 
at estimated fair market value with gains and losses included in a statement of activities. Realized gains and losses are recognized 
when securities are sold based on the first-in, first-out method.

(h) Provision for Taxes

The Endowment is exempt from federal income taxes on related income under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code 
and is classified as a private foundation. Accordingly, the Endowment is subject to federal excise taxes imposed on net investment 
income, including realized gains. The annual federal excise tax, normally 2%, can be reduced to 1% of net investment income 
provided certain requirements are met. In 2007, management estimates that The Duke Endowment should qualify for the 1% tax 
rate, and in 2006 was subject to the 1% tax rate.

In addition, the Endowment may be required to pay unrelated business income tax incurred through certain private equity 
investments. This tax is not material to the financial statements as a whole.

The Endowment records deferred excise taxes using the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred excise taxes are 
determined based on temporary differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax 
rates expected to be in effect when such amounts are realized or settled.

(i) Risks and Uncertainties

A significant portion of the Endowment’s assets are held in various investments options. Investment securities, and other 
investments, including private partnerships in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit and overall market 
volatility. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is possible that changes in values of investment 
securities will occur and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements.

(j) Use of Estimates

Management of the Endowment has made certain estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets, liabilities, revenues 
and expenses and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities to prepare these financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
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note 2: fair value of financial instruments

The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by the Endowment as follows:

Cash, securities transactions receivable, and obligations are carried at cost which approximates fair value because of the short 
maturity of these instruments.

Investments are carried at estimated fair value, which is generally based on year-end published quotations, except as discussed  
below. These prices are only used for financial reporting purposes and do not necessarily represent the realizable or liquidation  
values of such securities.

Some of the Endowment’s assets are held in various limited partnerships that invest in the securities of companies and other 
investments that may not be immediately liquid. The partnerships’ general partners, who must follow the valuation guidelines 
stipulated in their respective limited partnership agreements, determine the value of such investments. Given the inherent risks 
associated with this type of investment, there can be no guarantee that there will not be widely varying gains or losses on these 
limited partnership investments in future periods.

note 3:  transfers from corpus

In accordance with the provisions of the Indenture, as modified by court order, the Trustees are allowed to expend restricted net assets 
to the extent necessary in the judgment of the Trustees for the Endowment to comply with the provisions of Section 4942 of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1954 or corresponding provisions of any subsequent federal tax statute.

The Trustees determined that distributions of principal funds in 2007 and 2006 in the amounts of $123,500,000 and $91,500,000, 
respectively, would be necessary in order for the Endowment to comply with the provisions set forth in Section 4942 of the tax code.

note 4: provision for taxes

During 2007, the Endowment recorded a provision for estimated excise taxes in the amount of $1,233,117. This was allocated to 
the net change in unrestricted net assets. The decrease in deferred excise tax liability was $540,000 and was allocated to unrealized 
appreciation in permanently restricted net assets for 2007. The Endowment’s net deferred excise tax liability was $5,628,000 at 
December 31, 2007, which primarily relates to unrealized gains on investments.

note 5: investments

Fixed income

Public equities

Private equities

Marketable alternatives

Real assets

Short-term investments

 
2007 cost

$ 41,000,000

671,323,554

442,774,799

923,502,703

206,695,559

328,864,477

$ 2,614,161,092

 
2006 cost

$ 299,160,190

882,270,322

369,233,929

466,942,222

193,180,532

115,048,338

$ 2,325,835,533

 
2006 market

$ 300,274,805

1,147,426,360

322,101,262

664,596,796

393,154,391

115,048,338

$ 2,942,601,952

 
2007 market

$ 51,109,462

868,462,175

426,100,559

1,116,806,140

385,338,039

329,128,866

$ 3,176,945,241

Investments are composed of the following:

Gross unrealized gains, net of deferred excise tax

Gross unrealized losses

Excess of market over cost

(Decrease) Increase in net unrealized appreciation on assets

Net realized gains from sale of investments

Total net gain

Investment income

total return

2007

$ 665,056,365

(107,897,747)

557,158,618

(53,448,872)

550,851,341

497,402,469

61,653,797

$ 559,056,266

2006

$ 704,913,951

(94,306,461)

610,607,490

175,707,718

184,994,320

360,702,038

65,193,796

$ 425,895,834

The following summarizes the relationship between cost and market value of investments:
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As discussed in Note 4, a provision for deferred excise taxes of $5,628,000 was also allocated to gross unrealized gain in 2007.  
In connection with the outsourcing of the Endowment’s investment management function, certain investment positions  
previously held by the Endowment were liquidated and re-allocated to various investment positions consistent with DUMAC’s 
investment strategies.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, Duke Energy Corporation common stock represented approximately 2% of the Endowment’s 
investments. The Endowment participates in a securities lending program. The Endowment loans certain investment securities  
for short periods of time in exchange for collateral, consisting mainly of cash and U.S. Government securities, equal to at least 
102% of the fair value of the investment securities on loan. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, investment securities with a fair 
value of $14,207,114 and $191,848,704, respectively were on loan. Investment income earned on securities lending transactions 
for 2007 and 2006 was $448,687 and $547,293, respectively. No collateral received has been pledged as of December 31, 2007.

As part of its investment strategy, the Endowment invests in certain derivative instruments, typically intended to economically 
hedge certain investment positions from fluctuations in market, rate, currency or other identified risks. Changes in the fair value 
of derivative instruments are recognized as unrealized gains or losses in the accompanying statement of activities. As of December 
31, 2007, the fair value of derivative investments totaled approximately $9,251,216 with notional amounts of approximately 
$866,431,688. For 2006, the Endowment held certain derivative instruments; however, the fair market value of such amounts was 
not material.

note 6: net assets

note 7: pension and other postretirement plans

The Endowment sponsors a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering all eligible employees. The benefits are based 
on years of service and the employee’s average final creditable compensation. A contribution to the plan was required during 
2007 in the amount of $170,349. The benefit obligation as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $10,949,184 and $11,560,540, 
respectively and the net pension (liability)/asset of ($665,257) and $990,459, respectively, based on actuarial assumptions 
at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, was deemed not to be material to the financial statements. The Endowment 
also sponsors a defined contribution plan with the Endowment providing matching contributions equal to 100% of employee 
contributions up to 3% and 50% of employee contributions between 3% and 5%. All full-time employees are eligible after a three-
month waiting period.

The Endowment provides certain health care and life insurance benefits to retired employees. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, 
the Endowment has determined that the liability for unfunded retirement benefits extended to retirees and to employees upon 
their retirement is not material to its net assets. The accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at the previous measurement 
date of December 31, 2007 was $2,045,056.

Duke University under Original Corpus,  
 Corpus Item VIII and Corpus Item XI 

Other charitable purposes

Temporarily restricted net assets

2007 

 
$ 11,932,744

45,192,241

$ 57,124,985

2006

 
$ 18,340,162

69,458,710

87,798,872

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of the following at December 31:

Duke University under Original Corpus,  
 Corpus Item VIII and Corpus Item XI 

Other charitable purposes

Temporarily restricted net assets

2007 

 
$ 680,919,124

2,578,808,342

$ 3,259,727,466

2006

 
$ 614,747,995

2,240,403,115

$ 2,855,151,110

Permanently restricted net assets consist of the following at December 31:
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Russell M. Robinson II – Chairman 
Charlotte, North Carolina 
Board member since 1987  
Chairman since 2001

Chairman of the Committee on Finance and Ex-Officio member of the Audit, Child Care, 
Communications, Educational Institutions, Health Care, Investments, Human Resources, Rural 
Churches, and Trustees and Governance committees.

Robinson is a Founding Partner of the law firm Robinson, Bradshaw & Hinson, P.A. Currently, he 
serves as a Trustee of the YMCA of Greater Charlotte, the United Way of the Central Carolinas, and 
the Charlotte Research Institute. Robinson is a member of the American Law Institute, Fellow — the 
American Bar Foundation and a member of the Board of Visitors for Duke University Law School.

Mary D. B. T. Semans – Chairman Emeritus 
Durham, North Carolina  
Board member since 1957  
Vice Chairman from 1970-1982 and Chairman from 1982-2001

Member of the committees on Educational Institutions, Health Care and Human Resources, and Ex-Officio 
member of the Audit, Child Care, Communications, Finance, Investments, Rural Churches, and Trustees and 
Governance committees.

Semans is the great-niece of James B. Duke, founder of The Duke Endowment. She is an Emeritus Member of 
the Board of Trustees for Duke University, Chairman of the Executive Mansion Fine Arts Committee, Honorary 
Trustee of the North Carolina School of the Arts and Trustee Emeritus of the North Carolina Museum of Art. 
In addition, Semans serves on the boards of Kenan Institute of Ethics at Duke University and Friends of Duke 
University Library, and on the Board of Visitors for Duke University Medical Center.

William G. Anlyan, M.D. – Vice Chairman
Durham, North Carolina 
Board member since 1990 

Member of the Communications, Health Care, Finance and Rural Churches committees.

Anlyan is Chancellor Emeritus of Duke University Medical Center. Currently, he is a member of the Board  
of the National Health Museum in Washington, D.C. He is a member of the Institute of Medicine of the 
National Academy of Sciences. Anlyan has been Chairman of the Board of the Association of American 
Medical Colleges, the Association of Academic Health Centers, the Board of Regents of the National Library  
of Medicine and Research!America. 

L. Neil Williams Jr. – Vice Chairman
Atlanta, Georgia
Board member since 1997 

Chairman of the committees on Educational Institutions and Trustees and Governance, and member  
of the Finance, Human Resources and Investments committees. 

Williams is the retired Managing Partner of the law firm Alston & Bird LLP in Atlanta. Currently,  
he serves as Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the Vasser Woolley Foundation, Chairman of the  
Robert W. Woodruff Arts Center, Trustee of the Halle Foundation, Trustee of Trinity Presbyterian  
Church and is a member of the Board of Directors of Printpack, Inc., and Acuity Brands, Inc. 

Trustees
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William Barnet III 
Spartanburg, South Carolina
Board member since 2006 

Chairman of the Committee on Investments and member of the Audit and Health Care committees.

Barnet is CEO of The Barnet Company and Barnet Development Company and is serving a second 
term as Mayor of Spartanburg, S.C. Currently, he serves on the boards of Bank of America, Duke Energy 
Corporation, ETV Endowment of South Carolina and Palmetto Institute.  

Constance F. Gray 
Winston-Salem, North Carolina
Board member since 1996 

Chairman of the Committee on Rural Churches and member of the Child Care, Communications, 
Finance, and Trustees and Governance committees.

Currently, Gray serves on the Carson Council of Rachel’s Network in Washington, D.C. and is on 
the Board of Trustees, serving as Chairman of the Communication Committee of The Compass Rose 
Society of the Anglican Communion.

Dennis M. Campbell, B.D., Ph.D., D.D.
Woodberry Forest, Virginia
Board member since 2004

Chair of the Committee on Audit and member of the Child Care, Educational Institutions, and Trustees  
and Governance committees.

Campbell is Headmaster of Woodberry Forest School. For many years he was Dean of the Divinity School  
and Professor of Theology at Duke University. Previously, he was a member of the Board of Directors of  
Family Health International, the Boys and Girls Club of Orange County, the Virginia Association of 
Independent Schools and the Piedmont Environmental Council and a Trustee of the International  
Coalition of Boys’ Schools.

Ravenel B. Curry III 
New York, New York
Board member since 2008 

Member of the Investments and Health Care committees.  

Curry is the President and Co-founder of Eagle Capital Management in New York. He has served 
as a Trustee of Furman University, as President of the Furman University Alumni Board and as 
Chair of the New Jersey Higher Education Assistance Authority. Currently, Curry is a Trustee of the 
Manhattan Institute and the New York Hall of Science. 
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Mary D. T. Jones 
Abingdon, Virginia
Board member since 1988 

Chairman of the Committee on Communications and member of the Child Care, Rural Churches, and 
Trustees and Governance committees.

Jones is Chairman of the Mary Duke Biddle Foundation, and serves as a current board member of Emory 
& Henry College, the Virginia Historical Society, the Richmond and Bristol Junior League and the 
Washington County Public Library Foundation.

Thomas S. Kenan III 
Chapel Hill, North Carolina
Board member since 1992 

Member of the Audit, Educational Institutions, Health Care and Rural Churches committees.

Kenan is Director of Tops Petroleum Corporation and Director and Vice Chairman of the Board of 
Flagler System, Inc. He is Director of the four William R. Kenan, Jr. Fund Foundations and a Trustee of 
the William R. Kenan, Jr. Charitable Trust, The Executive Mansion Fine Arts Fund and The Randleigh 
Foundation Trust. In addition, he serves on the boards of the Mary Duke Biddle Foundation, the Duke-
Semans Fine Arts Foundation and St. Stephen’s Episcopal Church Foundation. 

Charles C. Lucas III 
Charlotte, North Carolina
Board member since 2004 

Chairman of the Committee on Human Resources and member of the Audit, Communications and 
Rural Churches committees.

Lucas is a Partner with The McAulay Firm. Currently, he serves on the Board of Trustees of North 
Carolina School of the Arts and on the Diocesan Council of the Episcopal Diocese of North Carolina.  
He serves on the Board of Advisors of the Thomas S. Kenan Institute for the Arts, University of North 
Carolina at Chapel Hill and Duke University.

Wilhelmina M. Reuben-Cooke
Fairfax Station, Virginia
Board member since 2007

Member of the Educational Institutions and Rural Churches committees.

Reuben-Cooke is a Professor of Law at the David A. Clarke School of Law at the University of the 
District of Columbia where previously she served as the Provost and Vice President of Academic 
Affairs. She is an Emeritus Member of the Board of Trustees of Duke University, having  served as 
a member of the Executive Committee and Chair of the Academic Affairs and Honorary Degree 
committees. Currently, she serves on the Board of Trustees of Wells College in Aurora, New York.

Trustees continued…
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Jean G. Spaulding, M.D., P.C.
Durham, North Carolina
Board member since 2002 

Chairman of the Committee on Health Care and member of the Child Care, Communications, 
Finance, and Trustees and Governance committees.

Spaulding is in the private practice of psychiatry, Jean G. Spaulding, M.D., P.C. Currently, she  
serves as Director of Cardinal Health Corporation, is on the Advisory Board of Bright Horizons and 
serves on the boards of Josiah Charles Trent Memorial Foundation and the Durham board of Wachovia 
Bank of North Carolina. Previously, she served on the Board of Directors of the North Carolina 
Biotechnology Center. 

Kenneth D. Weeks Jr., M.D., F.A.C.P., F.A.C.C. 
Charlotte, North Carolina 
Board member since 2007

Member of the Educational Institutions and Health Care committees. 

Weeks is a cardiologist and researcher with Mid Carolina Cardiology, which he co-founded.  
Currently, he serves on the Advisory Council for the University of North Carolina at Charlotte 
Center for Professional and Applied Ethics, and the Leadership Circle of United Way of Central 
Carolinas. He has served as a Trustee of Davidson College and as Board Chairman of Novant Health. 
Weeks is an instructor and mentor for the pre-medical program at Davidson College.

Minor M. Shaw 
Greenville, South Carolina
Board member since 1999 

Chairman of the Committee on Child Care and member of the Finance, Human Resources and 
Investments committees.

Shaw is President of the Micco Corporation. She serves as Chairman of the Daniel-Mickel Foundation, 
and is a board member of the S.C. Governors School for the Arts and Humanities Foundation, 
MDC, Inc., United Way of Greenville County, The Hollingsworth Funds, South Carolina ETV 
Communications, Palmetto Institute, S.C. Competitiveness Council, Greenville Chamber  
of Commerce, Piedmont Natural Gas, Blue Cross Blue Shield of South Carolina and Columbia  
Nations Funds.
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administration

Eugene W. Cochrane Jr. 
President

Cochrane joined the Endowment 
in 1980 after eight years as a 
hospital administrator. At the 
Endowment he served as Director 
of Health Care and as Executive 
Vice President prior to becoming 
President in 2005. Cochrane 
is a member of the Kate B. 
Reynolds Healthcare Advisory 
Board, the Board of Trustees of 
the Southeastern Council on 
Foundations and participates 
in many local community 
organizations.

Arthur E. Morehead IV  
Staff Counsel

Morehead joined the Endowment 
in 2008. Prior to his arrival, he 
was a shareholder at Robinson, 
Bradshaw & Hinson, P.A., in 
Charlotte, N.C., and concentrated 
on trusts and estates and tax law. 
Morehead is a North Carolina 
Board Certified Specialist in Estate 
Planning and Probate Law and is a 
member of the North Carolina and 
South Carolina Bars.

Peggy J. Briscoe 
Special Assistant to the President

Carolyn M. Duff 
Director of Payroll and Benefits

Elizabeth J. Ireland 
Fellow

Terri W. Honeycutt 
Corporate Secretary

Judy H. Wally 
Information Systems Administrator

Margaret B. Andrews 
Fellow

Susan L. McConnell 
Director of Human Services

McConnell joined the Endowment 
in 2007. In addition to her role 
as Director of Human Services, 
she is a Program Officer in the 
Education program area. Prior to 
her work with the Endowment, 
McConnell served more than 20 
years in Human Resources between 
The Vanguard Group and Duke 
Energy Corporation. Currently, 
she holds certification as a Senior 
Professional in Human Resources.

Staff Members



632007 annual report

a legacy at work

communications

Charity L. Perkins
Director of Communications 

Perkins joined the Endowment 
in 2006 after 12 years with 
Foundation For The Carolinas as 
Vice President of Communications. 
With 28 years experience in the 
communications field, she has held 
senior positions with nonprofit 
organizations in Charleston, S.C. 
and Roanoke, Va. Perkins serves 
on the Council on Foundations’ 
Communications Advisory 
Committee.

Jeri F. Krentz
Assistant Director  
of Communications  

child care

Rhett N. Mabry
Director of Child Care

Mabry joined the Endowment 
in 1992 as Associate Director of 
Health Care. In 1998, he assumed 
the role of Director of Child Care. 
Currently, Mabry serves on the 
board of the Child Welfare League 
of America and is a member 
of the Southeastern Council 
on Foundations’ Membership 
Committee.

Marilyn H. MacKenzie
Senior Administrative Assistant

Phillip H. Redmond Jr.
Associate Director
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Karen H. Rogers
Treasurer

Rogers joined the Endowment in 
1996 after four years with KPMG 
as a Senior Auditor. Rogers worked 
for ten years as the Endowment’s 
Controller and in 2006 was 
promoted to Treasurer. Rogers is a 
Certified Public Accountant and 
is a member of the North Carolina 
Association of CPAs and the 
American Institute of CPAs.

finance

Melinda O. Hardin 
Accounting Assistant

Anita W. West 
Assistant Controller

Natalie C. Wiggins 
Administrative Assistant

education

Susan L. McConnell 
Program Officer

Eugene W. Cochrane Jr. 
Director of Education

Staff Members continued…
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investments

K. Todd Walker 
Managing Director

Walker joined the Endowment in 
2003 and managed the public equity 
and real assets portfolios. He became 
Managing Director in 2007 and is 
the liaison between the Endowment 
and DUMAC, LLC. Before joining 
the Endowment, Walker was 
Director of Long-term Investments 
at Duke Energy Corporation. 
He has the Chartered Financial 
Analyst designation and serves 
on the Investment Committee of 
Foundation For The Carolinas.

Diana Zilberdrut 
Senior Administrative Assistant

Mary L. Piepenbring
Director of Health Care

Piepenbring joined the Endowment 
in 2000, after seven years as Vice 
President in Administration at 
Carolinas HealthCare System. 
Piepenbring is a Southeastern 
Council on Foundations’ Hull 
Fellow and serves on the Executive 
Committee of the North Carolina 
Medical Care Commission, and the 
board of the Center for Hospital 
Quality and Patient Safety. 

health care

Linwood B. Hollowell III 
Associate Director

M. Tina Markanda 
Program Officer

Meka S. Sales
Program Officer

Ashleigh J. Allessio 
Administrative Assistant

Nancy L. Edwards 
Administrative Assistant

Ronda S. Dwyer 
Senior Administrative Assistant
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Toni L. Freeman
Director of Project Research  
and Evaluation

Freeman joined the Endowment 
in 1999 to establish its evaluation 
program. Prior to joining the 
Endowment, she was Senior 
Vice President for Finance at the 
Charlotte Convention and Visitors 
Bureau and held senior positions at 
SunHealth (Premier) and two local 
universities. She is a member of the 
American Evaluation Association 
and the Evaluation Roundtable 
and serves on the Southeastern 
Council on Foundations’ Hull 
Fellowship Committee. 

project research and evaluation

Janet B. Haas 
Senior Administrative Assistant

Paula W. Greene
Office Services Coordinator

Greene joined the Endowment’s 
Finance staff in 2002 after three 
years at Arthur Anderson, LLP 
where she worked in Experienced 
Recruiting and Private Client 
Services. Since 2006, Greene 
has led the Endowment’s Office 
Services group, an administrative 
support team.

office services

Toni M. Roof 
Senior Administrative Assistant

Debbie B. Brinkley
Administrative Assistant

Eric D. Stevens 
Administrative Assistant

Staff Members continued…
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W. Joseph Mann
Director of Rural Church

Mann joined the Endowment in 
1989 after serving five years as the 
Director of Continuing Education 
at Duke University Divinity 
School. Mann serves on the Board 
of Ordained Ministry, the N.C. 
Center for Nonprofits and  
is Chairman of Faith & Form.  
Also, he is Adjunct Professor in 
Parish Work at Duke University 
Divinity School.

rural church

Robert R. Webb III 
Program Officer

Trena McClure 
Senior Administrative Assistant
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The Duke Endowment 
is a private foundation established in 1924 

 by industrialist and philanthropist 
James B. Duke. 

The Endowment’s mission is 
to enrich lives and communities 

in North Carolina and South Carolina 
by nurturing children, promoting health, 
educating minds and enriching spirits.

A guide in period clothing prepares to greet visitors at the Homestead.



www.dukeendowment.org 

100 north tryon street, suite 3500
charlotte, north carolina  28202-4012

telephone 704.376.0291


